LOYOLA UNIVERSITY NEW ORLEANS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION
BOARD MEETING
TUESDAY, MAY 14, 2024
MONROE HALL, ROOM 152
ZOOM: https://loyno.zoom.us/j/96413231961?pwd=K3NFUVhmQStHaUxNS21LREo5cmJPZz09
Meeting ID: 964 1323 1961
Passcode: 371857

AGENDA
I.  Prayer
II.  Call to Order/Welcome Gene Hernandez
President
III.  Approval of Minutes Gene Hernandez
March 19, 2024 Meeting
IV.  Special Guest Carol Markowitz
COO & Senior VP of Finance
V.  Faculty Report Mike Giusti
Faculty Representative
VI.  Committee Reports
a) Awards & Admission Ryan Holmes and Trent Dang
b) Career Mentoring Terry Fisher and Ashley Stevens
c) Chapters Jen Costa
d) NOLA Chapter Jill Ferrell
VII.  Office of Alumni Engagement Report Laurie Leiva
AVP of Alumni Engagement
VIII.  New Business

a) Nominating Committee:
Allison Plaisance

Patricia Crowley
Shercole King
Terry Fisher

Delaney Vollmer
Gene Hernandez
John Person
b) Application Link: https://loyno.az1.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_8tVIWBEStUHJ3ym
c) Updates to the Bylaws



https://loyno.zoom.us/j/96413231961?pwd=K3NFUVhmQStHaUxNS21LREo5cmJPZz09
https://loyno.az1.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_8tVIwBE5tUHJ3ym

IX.

Unfinished Business

a)

b)

Recognition of Board Members concluding their service

Chris Zimny Kyle Carpenter
Sharyn Booker Terry Fisher
Deon Sanders Ryan Holmes

Planning for 2024-2025
Meeting dates (attached)
Discussion about Committees (priorities of board in 2024-2025 year



Loyola University New Orleans Alumni Association

Board of Directors Meeting and Event Dates

2024-2025

Board Orientation Meeting

Saturday, August 24, 2024
9:00 a.m. to Noon
Location: TBD

Board Meeting (1/4)

Meeting Focus: Committee Goals

Tuesday, September 10, 2024
6:00 p.m.
Location: TBD

Committee Meetings (1/3)

Week of September 16, 2024
(exact date finalized by Committee Chairs)
Location: TBD

Exec Committee Meeting (1/3)

Tuesday, October 8, 2024
6:00 p.m.
Location: TBD

Volunteer Appreciation Reception
(a joint reception for visiting committee and
alumni board members)

Thursday, October 10, 2024
Time: TBD
Location: TBD

Board Meeting (2/4)
Meeting Focus: Committee Updates

Tuesday, November 19, 2024
6:00 p.m.
Location: TBD

1912 Society Dinner

Thursday, December 5, 2024
Audubon Tea Room

Committee Meetings (2/3)

Week of January 13, 2025
(exact date finalized by Committee Chairs)
Location: TBD

Exec Committee Meeting (2/3)

Tuesday, February 4, 2025
6:00 p.m.
Location: TBD




Board Meeting (3/4)
Meeting Focus: Loyola Loyal Day

Tuesday, March 11, 2025
6:00 p.m.
Location: TBD

Loyola Loyal Day

March 19-20, 2025

Committee Meetings (3/3)

Week of April 7, 2025
(exact date finalized by Committee Chairs)
Location: TBD

Exec Committee Meeting (3/3)

Tuesday, April 22, 2025
6:00 p.m.
Location: TBD

Board Meeting (4/4)
Meeting Focus: Nominating Committee

Tuesday, May 20, 2025
6 p.m.
Location: TBD




LOYOLA UNIVERSITY NEW ORLEANS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION
BOARD MEETING
TUESDAY, MARCH 19, 2024
MONROE LIBRARY, SEMINAR Room 4 (2™ Floor)

MINUTES

Members in Attendance
Shercole King, Terry Fisher, Deon Sanders, Mike Giusti, Mike Davis, Mia Vitello, Patricia Crowley, Delaney
Vollmer, Trent Dang, Jill Farrell, Gene Hernandez, Nick Poche, Curt Howard, Sharyn Booker, Michelle Dunnick

Members Attending Virtually
Natasha Alveshire, John Person, Jen Costa, Jenna Cronin, Ryan Holmes, Laura Lee Wolfson, Anne Seiler, Bea
Forlano

Non-members in Attendance

Eliana Fernandez, Laurie Leiva, Garrett Lacour

I.  Opening Prayer
Said by Patricia Crowley

II.  Call to Order/Welcome
Meeting was called to order at 6:02 p.m.

III. Approval of Minutes
Terry Fisher moved to approve the minutes, minutes were approved unanimously.

IV. Loyola Loyal Day

Delivered by Garrett Lacour

Loyola Loyal day is tomorrow! Garrett shared a promotional video made for Loyola Loyal
day that will be displayed on the official donation landing page. Goal is 900 donos to
unlock a $300,000 gift. The Board is encouraged to share links and information through
March 20"-21% through social media. Donation website is optimized for live updates as
well as making social media sharing as simple as possible. There is a donation
competition between chapters as well as gifts for certain level of donations. A $500
donation earns a metal wine stopper. Goals are at around 27%

V. President’s Report
Delivered by Gene Hernandez.

VI. Student Report

Delivered by Mia Vitello

Election for next year are underway. Magis awards. SGA has chosen the Staff and Student
org awards, still need to choose faculty awards. Notable DI events coming up. Black
Professionals panel helped Black students get in contact with Black professionals and
Alumni. Merch drop soon. Sweatshirts and hat to drop around Easter, free for the student
body.

Increasing relations with the Maroon. First all-female cabinet, the Maroon is doing an

NEXT MEETING: TUESDAY, MAY 14, 2024



article on it for Women’s History Month.

VII. Faculty Report — Mike Giusti
Vice President for Enrollment closed search is wrapping up, four candidates being
looked at, process is confidential. Enrollment is down at 15%, generally down
nationwide. Possibly related to issues with FAFSA enrollment. Rachel Hoorman
stepped down as VP of Marketing, Chris Wiseman stepped down as VP of
Advancement. Main concerns are around student debt,

Boiler blew, hot water and heating was off for 5 days. A 25-year-old component
with a 20-year lifespan failed.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Awards and Admission Committee

Co-Chairs: Trent Dang and Ryan Holmes

Co-Chairs have met a few times in regards to Alumni involvement as far as it relates to Admissions and are
currently waiting for the new VP to be chosen so they can have an idea on what their vision is and if they come with
any ideas from previous experience. Currently keeping an eye on different schools around the US to see what they
are doing.

Career Development Committee

Co-Chairs: Terry Fisher and Ashley Stevens

Networking event was not able to be pulled off, students did not sign up for it and Career Center fell behind on
promoting it. A Zoom How-To about networking was planned to be held for participating students two days before
the event. The Event will transfer to the Fall and there are plans for an etiquette dinner.

Chapters Committee
Chair: Jen Costa

5 crawfish boils scheduled to be held over the next few months, managed and organized by Jessica Nystrom.

e Dallas - May 11
e Nashville, Atlanta — May 18
e (Central Florida, St. Louis — June

Possible Crawfish Boils in LA, Boston, Tampa and Washington DC (though crawfish is cost prohibitive there at the
moment.) 225 Alumni registered across the Mardi Gras Pop-Up events with really good showings in Atlanta,
Houston, Dallas and DC.

New Orleans Chapter/Events Committee

Chair: Jill Farrell

Subcommittee Chairs: Delaney Vollmer (Inauguration); Robert Allen (1912); Bea Forlano (Starlight Racing &
WOTP).

New Orleans Chapter events are available in the meeting packet. Loyola Loyal day tomorrow, Jazz Brunch,
Pelicans Game and the Happy Hour in April.

VIII. Alumni Engagement Report — Laurie Leiva
Current Goals:
1. Raise $350,000 for the Loyola Fund ($13 million in other new gifts and pledges)

8232,150.82 raised towards $350,000 goal



2. Execute events that showcase the values, history, and tradition of the University.

Done: Inauguration, 1912 Society Dinner, Wolves on the
Prowl, Law Alumni Luncheon, Hall of Fame,
Presidential Receptions in Houston, San
Francisco, Miami, & NYC

Ahead: Jazz Brunch, Loyola Loyal Day, Presidential
Receptions in Chicago, Commencement and Law
Reception during LSBA Conference

3. Implement an alumni engagement strategy that supports
University and advancement goals

- Volunteers
e Alumni Association Board of Directors
e  Young Alumni Board
e Law Alumni Board

- Chapters

- Affinity Alumni Programming

4. Other Updates

e Construction: Mercy Residence Hall & Chapel
e Handouts

e Staff News

e Volunteer Opportunity (@ Commencement

IX. New Business — Old business

Black Alumni Affinity Group

A group of alumni are interested in establishing a Black Alumni affinity group affiliated with the larger Alumni
Association. The existing group of BSU alumni consists of approximately 271 alumni across the nation with
graduation years from the 1980s to the 2020s. The existing group would like to create a formalized alumni
affinity group through the Alumni Association with the goal of reconnecting BSU graduates with both the
university and the regional chapter groups in addition to providing a network of alumni who were part of the
BSU while they were at Loyola. The ultimate goal is to engage Black alumni, offer mentoring, networking and
career advancement opportunities to current students and alumni. The long-term goals of the group would be to
assist in furthering the University President's goals for Loyola and potentially, once established, work to raise
funds to support current BSU students.

Shercole King made the motion to approve, seconded by John Person
Board Member Recruitment

Nominating Committee, no need for a wide call for large number of Board participant. 5-7 spots.

Proposed 2024-2025 Meeting Schedule



August Orientation

September First Meeting + Awards Committee Meeting (Separate Nights) OR Committee Meetings +
Executive Committee Meeting (Separate Nights) - Depending on the Volunteer Social

October  First Meeting + Awards Committee Meeting (Separate Nights) OR Committee Meetings +
Executive Committee Meeting (Separate Nights) - Depending on the Volunteer Appreciation Social

November Second Meeting

December No Meeting

January ~ Committee Meetings
February Executive Committee Meeting

March Third Meeting

April Committee Meetings

May Executive Committee Meeting
June Fourth Meeting

July No Meeting

Meeting was adjourned at 7:32 p.m.



Appreved-May14;2024Approved May 14, 2024

LOYOLA UNIVERSITY NEW ORLEANS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION
CONSTITUTION

ARTICLE I - NAME

The name and title of this organization shall be the Loyola University New Orleans (“University”’) Alumni
Association (“Association”).

ARTICLE IT — PURPOSE

Guided by the Jesuit principles of men and women with and for others, the Loyola University New Orleans
Alumni Association is organized to serve alumni, promote a spirit of cooperation and fellowship among
alumni, and encourage the development of lifelong relationships between alumni and the University, and
foster philanthropic loyalty and support for the University.

ARTICLE IIT — FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Association shall coincide with the fiscal year of the University.

ARTICLE IV - MEMBERSHIP

The Association shall consist of regular members, honorary members, and associate members, as defined in
the By-Laws.

ARTICLE V — BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1

The Board of Directors is the Association’s governing body. The Board of Directors (“Board”) is the official
representative for the Association and is responsible for proper action on matters in which the Association
has an interest. The Board has the authority to act for the Association.

Section 2
The composition of the Board of Directors shall be as follows:

President

President Appointee

President-Elect

Past-President

Representatives from Shared Interest Organizations, as defined in the By-Laws

At-Large Representatives

Representative-Representatives from each established Regional Chapter

Chairs of Active Committees as established by the Board, excluding Ad Hoc Committees
Staff representative from the Office of Institutional-University Advancement (Ex Officio)

Student Representative from the Student Government Association (Ex Officio)
——Faculty Representative (Ex Officio)
Section 3

All Directors shall be appointed in accordance with the By-Laws.

Section 4



The President shall not be allowed to succeed himself or herself.

Section 5

No person shall hold more than one (1) position on the Board of Directors simultaneously.

Section 6

All Directors, other than ex-officio members, shall have voting rights on all Board matters.

Section 7

The staff representative from the Office of Iastitutional-University Advancement will be the senior staff
person responsible for Alumni events and programing. The title of the individual may change but for the
purposes of the Constitution and Bylaws of the Alumni Association they shall be referred to as the “Alumni

Director.”

ARTICLE VI - ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING

The annual meeting of the membership for the purpose of transacting such business of the Association as
may be brought before the meeting shall be held at the University on a date and a time to be determined
from year to year by the Board. Such determination must be at least ninety (90) days prior to said meeting,
and, at least thirty (30) days prior to such meeting, each member of the Association shall be notified
through a posting on the alumni website of the time and place for such meeting and any other means of
notification the Board of Directors deems appropriate.

ARTICLE VII - AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS

The Board of Directors shall have the power to make, amend, and repeal the Constitution and By-Laws at
any regular or special meeting of the members of the Board by a vote of two-thirds of the members present,
provided the text of the proposed amendment has been mailed or otherwise transmitted to the members of
the Board of Directors at least fourteen (14) days prior to said meeting.

ARTICLE VIII - DISSOLUTION OF ASSOCIATION

In the event of the dissolution of this Association, the Board of Directors shall, after paying or making
provision for the payment of all of the liabilities of the Association, transfer all of the remaining assets of the
Association to Loyola University New Orleans.



LOYOLA UNIVERSITY NEW ORLEANS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION
BY-LAWS

ARTICLE I - PURPOSE

Guided by the Jesuit principles of men and women with and for others, the Loyola University New Orleans
(“University”) Alumni Association (“Association”) is organized to serve alumni, promote a spirit of
cooperation and fellowship among alumni, and encourage the development of lifelong relationships
between alumni and the University, and foster philanthropic loyalty and support for the University.

ARTICLE Il - MEMBERSHIP

The Association shall consist of regular members, honorary members, and associate members.

Section 1 Regular Members

Regular members shall include all persons who have completed at least two semesters and a total of at least
24 credit hours in the University, the College of Immaculate Conception, the New Orleans College of
Pharmacy or the New Orleans Conservatory of Music.

Section 2 Honorary Members

Honorary members shall include

a.  All persons who have received a degree Honoris Causa by Loyola University New Orleans.

b. Such persons as the Board of Directors may elect to honorary membership, at the request or with
the approval of the President of the University, in recognition of meritorious service to the
University or the Association.

Section 3 Associate Members
Parents of current students of the University, parents of regular members of the Association, current and
retired staff and faculty of the University, and friends of the University may join the Association as Associate

Members. Associate Members may participate in Association activities but shall not have the privilege of
voting or holding office in the Association.

ARTICLE IIT - MEETINGS OF THE ASSOCIATION

Section 1 Annual Meeting of the Association
There shall be an Annual Meeting pursuant to the Association Constitution.
Section 2 Special Meetings

A special meeting of the Association may be called by the President and shall be called by the President or
by the Alumni Director upon a resolution passed by a majority of the Board of Directors.

a.  Such resolution shall indicate the purpose(s) of the proposed meeting.
b. Notice of the date, time, place, and purpose(s) of any special meeting shall be given in the same
manner as is provided in the case of annual meetings.

Section 3 Quorum
At any annual or special meeting of the Association, those regular members in attendance shall constitute a

quorum for the transaction of all business. Only regular members are eligible to vote at any Association
meeting.



ARTICLE IV — BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1.A Terms

The terms of the members of the Board of Directors shall be two year terms unless indicated below:
Student Representative from the Student Government Association (Ex Officio) — One (1) year
Representative from each Alumni Chapter -- One (1) year
Faculty Representative (Ex Officio) — One (1) year

All term start dates shall coincide with the Association fiscal year.

Section 2 Appointments
The various members of the Board shall be elected or appointed as follows:

a.  The President-Elect, and the At-Large Representatives, shall be appointed by the Nominating
Committee pursuant to the procedures set forth in Article VIII of these By-Laws.

b. The Presidential Appointee shall be appointed by the incoming President at his or her discretion.

c. The Regional Chapter Representatives shall be elected by the Regional Chapters in accordance
with their By-Laws.

d. Representatives from the College of Law Alumni Board, Young Alumni Pack, Law Young
Alumni Board, Black Alumni Affinity Group, and Shared Interest Organizations shall be
appointed in accordance with their respective By-Laws.

e. Committee Chairs shall be appointed in accordance with Article XII.
f.  The University Faculty Representative shall be appointed by the Chairperson of the Faculty Senate.

Section 3 Annual Meeting

The Board of Directors shall hold an Annual Meeting of the members and shall otherwise meet quarterly or as
determined by the President or upon the petition of the majority of the Board members eligible to vote on
Board matters.

Section 4 Quorum

A quorum of the Board of Directors shall consist of a majority of the members of the Board excluding
representatives from chapters and ex-officio members.

Section 5 Eligibility to Serve

All regular members of the Association shall be eligible for membership on the Board and shall be
encouraged to serve.

Section 6 Entitlement to Serve

To be entitled to hold an appointed or elected office on the Board, a member must have contributed to the
Annual fund or such other university unrestricted fund as of the first meeting of the newly constituted
Board, and each member must maintain this annual financial support for the entire term of his or her
membership on the Board.



Section 7 One Position

No person shall hold more than one (1) position on the Board of Directors simultaneously unless one
position is that of Committee Chair.

Section 8 Voting Rights

All Directors, other than ex-officio members, shall have voting rights on all Board matters.
Section 9 Duties of the Board of Directors

The duties of the Board of Directors shall be to:

Represent and serve the alumni and student bodies.

Act on behalf of the chapters and the general membership.

Recommend amendments to the By-Laws.

Attend University and Association events as necessary.

Approve the Association’s annual operating plan.

Approve an appointment to fill any unexpired term that may occur within the board.
Review reports and recommendations of committees and implement recommendations.
Serve on two (2) or more standing committees.

Attend a majority of the scheduled board meetings each year.

Promote and communicate to the general community the activities and accomplishments of the
Board.

Contribute to the University through volunteerism and an annual gift.

1. Perform other duties as required by these Constitution and By-Laws.

TrrmR e ao o

~

Section 10 Order of Business

The President, who is the Chair of the meeting, shall determine the order of business for all meetings of the
Association. The Alumni DirectorAlumni—Direetor or a representative from the Office of Alumni
Engagement shall keep minutes of the meeting. Minutes of the meetings shall be kept in the Office of Alumni
Engagement.

Section 11 Manner of Transacting Business

The business of the Board of Directors shall be transacted in such manner as the Directors may, by resolution,
determine from time to time.

Section 12 Open Meetings

Anyone may attend a meeting of the Board of Directors. However, only members of the Board, the
Association, Alumni Engagement Staff, and the Vice-President of Institutienal-University Advancement
may participate in discussion. All other non-members must receive permission of the Alumni Director or
the President in advance of the meeting to participate in discussion.

Section 13 Notification

The Assistant Vice President of Alumni Engagement or President shall give advance notice of all Board

meetings in writing or by e-mail no later than ten days in advance of the meeting. Initial notification of
regularly scheduled meetings for the year shall constitute such notification.

ARTICLE V- POWERS AND DUTIES OF OFFICERS

Section 1 Officers



The officers of the Association shall be the President, President-Elect, and Past President.
Section 2 Appointed Officers

This Association shall also have an Assistant Vice President of Alumni Engagement Alumni Director who
shall be appointed by the President of the University.

Section 3 President

The power and duties of the President shall be to:

a. Represent the Association at College functions as necessary.

b. Preside at meetings of the Association, the Board of Directors and Executive Committee.

c. Call special meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Executive Committee.

d. Consult with the university administration on a regular basis.

e. Appoint Committee Chairs and Committee Members to serve concurrently with his/her term.

f.  Serve as an ex-officio member of all committees.

g. Meet with the University Board of Trustees or Committee as assigned by the Board of Trustees.
Section 4 President-Elect

The power and duties of the President-Elect shall be to:

a. Perform all duties of the President in his/her absence or because of his/her inability to act.
Represent the Association at university functions as necessary.

c. Fill an unexpired term of the President that may occur through resignation, death, removal or
inability to serve.
Speak at Association functions and special events as requested by the President.

e. Serve as a member of the Executive Committee.

Section 5 Past President

The President shall serve as Past President for one year following the conclusion of the term of office of
President, barring unforeseen circumstances.
The power and duties of the Past President shall be to:

a. Perform duties as the Board of Directors may prescribe.
b. Serve as an advisor to the President.
c. Serve as chair of the Nominating Committee.
d. Speak at Alumni Association functions and special events as requested by the President.
e. Serve as a member of the Executive Committee.
Section 6 Alumni Director

The power and duties of Alumni Director (who shall be the person appointed by the University to be the
Alumni Director) shall be to:

Plan and manage programs to involve alumni in the life of the University.

. - Serve or appoint a designee to serve on all committees of the Alumni Association.

Serve as liaison between the Association and the University.

Be responsible for the administration of the Association’s annual budget.

Be responsible for maintaining an accurate record of all official alumni proceedings and reports.
Perform such duties as the President of the University may designate.

e e o



ARTICLE VI DIVERSITY

The nominating committee shall work to ensure that the Alumni Association continues to be a diverse group
that is representative of the diversity found at Loyola University New Orleans. Such indicators of diversity
should include but are not limited to: age, gender, race, ethnicity, major, college of graduation, degree type.

ARTICLE VII - THE NOMINATING COMMITTEE

Section 1 Duties and Responsibilities

The Nominating Committee shall be responsible for selecting qualified alumni for the appointed positions
on the Board. The Committee shall appoint one qualified alumna/us for each appointed position.

Section 2 Members

The Nominating Committee shall consist of the following individuals:
a. President
b. President-Elect
c. Past President as chair
d. Two (2) members appointed by the President and approved by the Board of Directors.

e. One representative from the Past President Council as described in Article XIV, this individual
also serves as the chair of the Nominating Committee.-

Section 3 Staff Liaison from the Office of Institutional-University Advancement
The Alumni Director shall serve as an ex-officio member with no voting privileges.

Section 4 Chair

The Chair of the Committee shall be the Past President or their designee.

Section 5 Appointed Members

The two (2) members appointed by the President shall be Regular Members of the Association.

Section 6 Eligibility

No member of the Committee shall be eligible to be appointed to the Board for the fiscal year immediately
following his or her membership on the Committee, although he or she may be a current member of the
Board.

Section 7 Timeline

The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by Apri-June 1 of each year. The Committee shall meet
thereafter as determined by the Chair. The Committee shall present the Board with its list of appointments
to the appointed positions by Jure-July | each year.



Section 8 Criteria

In evaluating candidates for the appointed positions on the Board, the Nominating Committee shall
determine whether the candidate is willing to serve on the Board. In addition, the Committee shall consider
the following:

a. Prior Association experience and participation.

b. Interest in University and Association goals.

c. Time availability.

d. Additional vocational, civic and community experience.

e. Consistent record of financial support of the University, verified by the Alumni Director.

f.  Any other qualities considered appropriate by the Nominating Committee.

ARTICLE VIII - APPOINTMENT PROCEDURES

Section 1 Procedures

Upon receipt of the names of the alumni appointed to appointed positions on the Board, the Alumni
Director shall confirm that each of the appointed alumni meet membership requirements. No later than the
June 1 the Alumni Director shall distribute a list of the appointments to each member of the current Board.
Each member of the Board shall have thirty (30) days from the date of mailing or other distribution of the
appointments list to object in writing to the Alumni Director to any of the alumni so appointed. For purpose
of this section, the written objection must arrive at or be delivered to the Association office within this
thirty-day period. The final day of the thirty-day period shall be clearly stated in the communication
transmitting the list of appointees to the Board members. If two-thirds (2/3) or more of the Board members
so object to a specific appointment, that person shall not be appointed to the Board.

Section 2 Board Rejection

Should an appointment be rejected by the Board under Section 1 above, the President of the University
shall name a replacement. Such appointment shall be final.

ARTICLE IX — BOARD VACANCIES

Section 1 Temporary Absence of the President

In the absence of the President, meetings of the membership, the Board of Directors and the Executive
Committee shall be convened and presided over by the President-Elect or the Past President in that order.

Section 2 Presidential Resignation
In the event that the President resigns or is otherwise unable to fulfill his or her duties for any part of his or
her term, the President-Elect or Past President in that order shall execute the powers and responsibilities of

the Office of the President for the remainder of the fiscal year. Such service by the President-Elect shall
not prevent the President-Elect from serving as President during the next fiscal year.

Section 3 Board Vacancy

In the event an appointed or elected position shall become vacant during the fiscal year, a replacement shall
be named by the President, subject to the approval of a majority of the Board of Directors so voting at its



next scheduled meeting.
Section 4 Removal
A Board Member can be removed for cause under the following circumstances:

a. A Board Member can be removed after two consecutive unexcused absences from regularly
scheduled meetings. The Alumni Director and President shall determine whether an absence is
excused at their discretion.

b. Removal of the Member from the Board for any other reason shall occur upon the
recommendation of the President and shall occur by a majority vote of the Executive Committee
members in attendance or voting by a proxy at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Executive
Committee. To be valid, a proxy must be presented in writing or by e-mail to the Alumni Director
prior to the beginning of the meeting where the vote occurs. The members of the Executive
Committee shall be informed in writing or by e-mail that such a vote will be held no later than
seven (7) days before the date of the meeting where the vote will take place.

¢. The Board member being considered for removal shall be notified of the Executive Committee
meeting in writing or by e-mail no later than seven (7) days before the date of the meeting where
the vote will take place and shall have the right to address the Executive Committee at the
meeting.

d. Ifa member is removed from the Board under these rules, he or she shall be replaced in
accordance with section 3 of this Article IX.

ARTICLE X — SHARED INTEREST ORGANIZATIONS

Section 1 Definition

Officially recognized Association groups organized through mutual interest; including, but not limited to
academic areas of study, profession, athletics, fraternal involvement, or constituency characteristic, will be
considered eligible to apply for chartering.

Section 2 Application for Chartering

Alumni meeting the membership requirement of the Association outlined in Article I may petition the Board
of Directors to be chartered as a Shared Interest Organization of the Association.

Section 3 Chartering

Groups requesting to be certified as Shared Interest Organizations must complete the following
documentation for presentation to the Board:

Application form.

Acceptance of mission and standard by-laws of the Association.
Acceptance of standards as set by the Board of Directors.
Formation of a chartering steering committee.

Completion of interest level mailing.

oao o

Upon completion of these requirements, the Alumni Director shall present the application for charter to the
Board of Directors at its next meeting.

Section 4 Standards
Once chartered, a Shared Interest Organization must prepare a set of By-Laws, which must be approved by
the Executive Committee, and is expected to meet basic standards in the areas of Programming, Reporting,

Financial Responsibility and Membership.

Section 5 Modifications



The Board may modify, change, or add to these standards. The Board will communicate such changes,
additions, and modifications to the Shared Interest Organizations.

Section 6 Active Shared Interest Organizations
There is one (1) active group that will be grandfathered in as of the date of adoption of these By-Laws as

Shared Interest Organization, that is the Young Alumni Pack.

ARTICLE XTI - CHAPTERS

Section 1 Application for Chartering

Alumni meeting the membership requirement of the Association outlined in Article I may petition the Board
of Directors to be chartered as a chapter of the Association. Groups organized strictly through geographic
commonality will be considered eligible to apply for chartering.

Section 2 Chartering

Groups requesting to be certified as chapters must complete the following documentation for presentation to
the Board:

Application form.

Acceptance of mission and standard by-laws of the Association.
Acceptance of chapter standards as set by the Board of Directors.
Formation of a chartering steering committee.

Completion of interest level mailing.

opo o

Upon completion of these requirements, the Alumni Director shall present the application for charter to the
Board of Directors at its next meeting.

Section 3 Chapter Standards

Once chartered, a Chapter must prepare a set of By-Laws, which must be approved by the Executive
Committee, and is expected to meet basic standards in the areas of Programming, Reporting, Financial
Responsibility and Membership as outlined in the Chapter Leadership Handbook.

Section 4 Modifications

The Board may modify, change, or add to these standards. The Board will communicate such changes,
additions, and modifications to the Chapter Presidents.

ARTICLE XII — OTHER STANDING COMMITTEES

Section 1 Establishment
a. There shall be an Executive Committee, a Nominating Committee, and such other committees that
the Board may establish (the “Committees™) to ensure that the then key functions of the alumni
relations effort at Loyola University New Orleans are addressed by the Board.

Section 2 Ad Hoc Committees

The Executive Committee may appoint Ad Hoc Committees, as it deems necessary. Ad Hoc Committees
will function as directed in and exist for the period of time stated in the resolution, creating the committee.

Section 3 Committee Membership

Any Committee, except for the Executive and Nominating Committees, shall consist of a Chair as appointed
by the President, and other members of Board of Directors, along with the Alumni Director and/or the

10



Associate or Assistant Alumni Director. Non board members may be asked and encouraged to serve on a
committee at the request of the President, Director, or Chair of the Committee.

Section 4 Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Board of Directors shall be comprised of the President, President-Elect, Past
President, Alumni Director, and one member of the Board of Directors appointed by the President, to serve
concurrently with the President's term. The President shall serve as Chair. The Executive Committee
responsibilities are as follows:

Develop an annual operating plan for presentation to the Board.

Approve annual budget for the Board of Directors, Committees of the Board of Directors, and
funds granted to the Regional Chapters.

Charge standing and ad hoc committees.

Represent the Association at University events

Act as a liaison to the University and the Office of Alumni Relations.

Consider Alumni issues during periods between Board of Director meetings.

IS

™o a0

The Executive Committee shall meet as called by the President.

Section 5 Committee Meetings

All committees shall meet at the call of the chair of the Committee. Committee chairs shall prepare
quarterly reports of the activities. Such reports shall be included in the board packets distributed to board
members prior to each quarterly board meeting. Committees shall keep minutes of their meetings and shall

forward a copy of the minutes to the Alumni Director.

ARTICLE XIII - COUNCIL OF PAST PRESIDENTS

There shall be a Council of Past Presidents whose membership shall consist of all living past presidents of
the Association. The purpose of the group will be consultative in nature; that is, the Board may wish to
draw upon the collective experience of the group on matters concerning policies and programming, and
such other matters as the Board of Directors may request. The Council of Past Presidents will have the
opportunity to convene formally at least once a year, or more frequently, as needs of the Council of Past
Presidents or the Board may determine. The Council of Past Presidents members may receive minutes of
the Board meetings and other materials of interest, including items they might request.

ARTICLE XIV - INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Officers and Directors of the Association are indemnified and insured against liability under the University’s
General Umbrella Liability Policy.

ARTICLE XV - CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Any director, officer, staff member, or committee member having a material financial interest, or having an
immediate family member with a material financial interest, in a contract or other transaction presented to
the Board of Directors or a committee thereof for authorization, approval or ratification shall make a prompt,
full and frank disclosure of such person’s interest to the Board or committee prior to its acting on such
contract of transaction. Such disclosure shall include any relevant and material facts, known to such person,
about the contract or transaction which might reasonably be construed to be adverse to the corporation’s
interest. The board or committee to which such disclosure is made shall thereupon determine, by majority
vote whether the disclosure shows that a conflict of interest exists or can reasonably be construed to exist. If
a conflict is deemed to exist, such person shall not vote on, nor use personal influence on, nor participate
(other than to present factual information or respond to questions) in the discussions and deliberations with
respect to such contract or transactions. Such person may be counted in determining the existence of a
quorum at any meeting where the contract or transaction is under discussion or is being voted upon. The

11



minutes of the meeting shall reflect the disclosure made, the vote thereon and, where applicable, the
abstention from voting and participation, and whether a quorum was present. For purposes of this Section, a
person shall be deemed to have a “material financial interest” in a contract or other transaction if such person
is the party (or one of the parties) contracting or dealing with the corporation, or is a governor, trustee or
officer of, or has a significant financial or other interest in, the entity contracting with the corporation.

ARTICLE XVI- THIRD PARTY CONTRACT APPROVAL

All Committees, Shared Interest Organizations, and Chapters of the Association shall submit any proposed
contract with a third party to the Alumni Director for appropriate review and approval before execution of
said contract. Authorization to enter into such a contract on behalf of the Association is governed by policy
of the University.

ARTICLE XVII - AMENDMENTS TO THE BY-LAWS

The Board of Directors shall have the power to make, amend, and repeal By-Laws not inconsistent with the
Constitution at any regular or special meeting of the members of the Board by a vote of the majority of the
members present, provided the text of the proposed amendment has been mailed or otherwise transmitted to
the members of the Board of Directors at least seven (7) days prior to said meeting.

12



Alumni Association Board of Directors
Tuesday, May 14, 2025

LOYOLA

UNIVERSITY
NEW ORLEANS




Meeting Agenda

. Prayer
. Call to Order/Welcome
w.  Approval of Minutes
v. Special Guest Speaker: Carol Markowitz, COO and Senior VP of
Finance
v. ~ Reports
. Faculty Report
..~ Committee Reports: Awards & Admission; Career Mentoring;
Chapters; Events;
w.  Office of Alumni Engagement Report
v. New Business

. Unfinished Business

LOYOLA

UNIVERSITY
NEW ORLEANS 2



Student & Faculty Reports

Faculty Report, Mike Giusti

No Student Report
Commencement Recap

LOYOLA

UNIVERSITY
NEW ORLEANS 3



Committee Reports

 Awards & Admission

Dr. Anthony E. Jones, the new VP of Enroliment
Management, will begin this month. A meeting will take place
with Trent and Ryan once he arrives on campus.

» Career Mentoring

 Disappointment that the second networking event had to be
canceled.

» Chapters

» Crawfish Boils (pictures on next slide)

LOYOLA

UNIVERSITY
NEW ORLEANS 4




Crawfish

- 4mmm \OLA

Houston

Still to come:

May 18 = Atlanta, Miami, Nashville, and DC*
June 1 = Central Florida
June 8 = St. Louis and Boston

+

Il May 22 Chicago Presidential Reception
LOYOLA

June 5 LSBA Sandestin Cocktail Reception
UNIVERSITY
NEW ORLEANS 5




Committee Reports

 Events

* Wine Down Wednesdays
June 5 from 5-7 p.m. @ Oak & Ale

July 3 from 5-7 p.m. @ Bayou Wine Garden

* Reunion 2025 (and the annual Jazz Brunch) will
take place in the fall of 2025
« 20 Year Reunion for 2005-2009
« 50 Year Reunion for 1975-1979

| ann i #en I”I 1
Il ”l n
I3 G e

LOYOLA

UNIVERSITY
NEW ORLEANS 6




Alumni Engagement Report

1. Raise $350,000 for the Loyola Fund ($13 million in other
new gifts and pledges)

$291,163.55 raised towards $350,000 goal

2. Execute events that showcase the values, history, and
tradition of the University.

Done: Inauguration, 1912 Society Dinner, Wolves on the
Prowl, Law Alumni Luncheon, Hall of Fame,
Presidential Receptions in Houston, San
Francisco, Miami, & NYC; Jazz Brunch,
Commencement

Ahead: Law Reception during LSBA Conference

LOYOLA

UNIVERSITY
NEW ORLEANS 7




Alumni Engagement Report

3. Implement an alumni engagement strategy that supports
University and advancement goals
* Volunteers
« Alumni Association Board of Directors

* Young Alumni Board
* Law Alumni Board

« Chapters

* Affinity Alumni Programming
« Black Alumni Affinity Group

4. Other Updates

* Young Alumni Pack
« Staff news

LOYOLA

UNIVERSITY
NEW ORLEANS



Nominating Committee

 Outlined in Article VIl of the Bylaws
* Proposed 2024-2025 Nominating Committee:
Allison Plaisance
Delaney Vollmer
Gene Hernandez
John Person
Patricia Crowley
Terry Fisher

*Note that this includes an extra person to allow for
scheduling conflicts that might arise

LOYOLA

UNIVERSITY
NEW ORLEANS S



Nominating Committee (continued)

* Timeline
« 5/31/2024 = Deadline for Board Applications

 Link to apply:
https://loyno.azl.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV 8tVIwBE5tU

HJ3ym

« By 6//3/2024 = Application materials shared with the Nominating
Committee

« 6/13/2024 = Applicant Interviews and Nominating Committee
Meeting

 6/17.2024 = Slate finalized and shared with board via email for
review

« 7/19/2024 = Deadline to inform Gene or Alumni Office about any
reservations/objections to the slate

GG - 7/31/2024 = Existing board terms end

LOYOLA +_8/1/2024 = New board terms begin

UNIVERSITY
NEW ORLEANS 10



https://loyno.az1.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_8tVIwBE5tUHJ3ym

Updates to the Bylaws

* Administrative Updates
* Title Change
* Committee Names

*\Vote electronically after having had 14
days to review (vote on/around June 1)

| ann i #en I”I 1
Il ”l n
I3 G e

LOYOLA

UNIVERSITY
NEW ORLEANS

11



Unfinished Business

* Board Member Recognition — THANK
YOU FOR YOUR SERVICE

* Chris Zimny

» Sharyn Booker

* Deon Sanders

» Kyle Carpenter

* Terry Fisher

* Ryan Holmes

| ann i #en I”I 1
Il ”l n
I3 G e

LOYOLA

UNIVERSITY
NEW ORLEANS 12



Planning for 2024-2025

*Meeting Dates and Groups

* 4 Board Meetings (September, November, March, May)
« 3 Committee Meetings (September, January, April)

« 3 Executive Committee Meetings (October, February,
April)

 Committees in 2024-2025

i .
| ann i #en I”I 1
Il ”l n
”l LU [
1 LT

LOYOLA

UNIVERSITY
NEW ORLEANS 13




| ann i #en IHI 1
Il ”l n
”l LU [y

LOYOLA

UNIVERSITY
NEW ORLEANS

THANK YOU!

14



	Packet
	Meeting Agenda 5_14_2024
	Meeting Minutes 3-19-2024
	MINUTES
	Members in Attendance
	Members Attending Virtually
	Non-members in Attendance
	I. Opening Prayer
	Said by Patricia Crowley
	II. Call to Order/Welcome
	III. Approval of Minutes
	Terry Fisher moved to approve the minutes, minutes were approved unanimously.
	IV. Loyola Loyal Day
	Delivered by Garrett Lacour
	Loyola Loyal day is tomorrow! Garrett shared a promotional video made for Loyola Loyal day that will be displayed on the official donation landing page. Goal is 900 donos to unlock a $300,000 gift. The Board is encouraged to share links and informatio...
	V. President’s Report
	Delivered by Gene Hernandez.
	VI. Student Report
	Delivered by Mia Vitello
	Election for next year are underway. Magis awards. SGA has chosen the Staff and Student org awards, still need to choose faculty awards. Notable DI events coming up. Black Professionals panel helped Black students get in contact with Black professiona...
	Increasing relations with the Maroon. First all-female cabinet, the Maroon is doing an article on it for Women’s History Month.
	VII. Faculty Report – Mike Giusti
	Vice President for Enrollment closed search is wrapping up, four candidates being looked at, process is confidential. Enrollment is down at 15%, generally down nationwide. Possibly related to issues with FAFSA enrollment. Rachel Hoorman stepped down a...
	Boiler blew, hot water and heating was off for 5 days. A 25-year-old component with a 20-year lifespan failed.
	VIII. Alumni Engagement Report – Laurie Leiva
	Current Goals:
	IX. New Business – Old business


	BylawsMarkedVersion
	ARTICLE II – PURPOSE
	ARTICLE III – FISCAL YEAR
	ARTICLE IV – MEMBERSHIP
	ARTICLE V – BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	ARTICLE I – PURPOSE
	ARTICLE II – MEMBERSHIP
	ARTICLE III – MEETINGS OF THE ASSOCIATION
	ARTICLE IV – BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	Section 3 Annual Meeting

	ARTICLE V – POWERS AND DUTIES OF OFFICERS
	ARTICLE VII – THE NOMINATING COMMITTEE
	Section 2 Members
	Section 4 Chair
	Section 5 Appointed Members
	Section 6             Eligibility
	Section 7 Timeline
	Section 8             Criteria
	Section 1 Procedures
	Section 2 Board Rejection
	Section 3 Board Vacancy

	ARTICLE XIV - INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
	ARTICLE XV - CONFLICT OF INTEREST

	ARTICLE XVII – AMENDMENTS TO THE BY-LAWS


	Meeting Slides 5-13-2024
	Slide Number 1
	Meeting Agenda
	Student & Faculty Reports
	Committee Reports
	Crawfish
	Committee Reports
	Alumni Engagement Report
	Alumni Engagement Report
	Nominating Committee
	Nominating Committee (continued)
	Updates to the Bylaws
	Unfinished Business
	Planning for 2024-2025
	Slide Number 14


